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EETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FORTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
THE MEMBERS OF GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
WILL BE Hﬂ.‘in ON 30THNOVEMBER, 2021 AT 02:00 P.M. AT HOMEVILLA, 48

KRISHNA SANGH| PATH, GAMDEVI, MUMBAI 400007, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
TRANSACTING THE FOLLOWING ITEMS OF BUSINESS:

ORDINARY E_)L!S!NE_S_S;

1. To receive, consider and adopt;

a)the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 Mhrch,|2021 along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

thereon; and

b)the Audited [Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 Mhrch, 2021, along with the Auditor’s Report thereon.

2. To appoint M/s. Khandhar Mehta and Shah as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the
place of Kal amwalla & Mistry LLP in accordance with the guidelines issued by RBL

#RESOLVEID THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,142 and other applicable
provisions, if any} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under and RBI
guidelines dn appointment of statutory auditors of banks and NBFCs (including any
statutory medification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in
accordance with the receipt of consent and eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies
Act 2013 and FORM B as per the guidelines of RBI, M/s. Khandhar Mehta & Shah, bearing
registration no. 125512W be and are hereby appointed as the statutory auditors of the
Company fqr a penod of three years from the conclusion of Forty Third Annual Generat
Meeting (AGM) held in the calendar year 2021 till the conclusion of the Forty Sixth AGM to
be held in the calendar year 2024, on a remuneration that may be determined by the Board
in consultation with the Statutory Auditors from time to time in the place of existing
Statutory Afyiditors Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP, Firm Registration no. 106041W/W100136,
who has given notice in writing by expressing its ineligibility to continue due to completion
of permissible term of three years as mandated by RBI vide its Circular. DoS.
CO.ARG/SHC.01/08.91.001/2021-22, dated April 27, 2021,

RESOLVE FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorised do]ali such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary or
desirable tolgive effect to this Resolution and matters incidental thereto”.

corp@geetanjaligroup.in
E) www.geetanjaligroup.in




Special Bysiness:

. To appoinl: Mr. Bharat Ishwarlal Gosalia (DIN:09169451) as a Director (Non
Executive/Professional) of the Company.

To considpr and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s}, the following
Resolutiony as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED T pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 152, 161 and all other
applicable| proyvisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies
(Appointnjent jand Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modificatign(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Articles of Association of
the Company ahd in accordance with the receipt of approval of Reserve Bank of India and
other applicable laws, Mr. Bharat Gosalia (DIN: 09169451), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company with effect from 27 September 2021, by the Board of
Directors in accordance with the provisions of section 161 of the Act and who holds office
only upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, be and is hereby
appointed ps N | n-Executive Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall pay remuneration to Mr. Bharat Gosalia
in accordahce with the terms of the agreement executed between the Company and Mr.
Bharat Gogalia [to avail his advice and guidance in the areas of various regulatory and
legislative [ amendments, continuing need of maintaining and servicing debts of the
Company, |adhering CIC Directions of RBI and overall management of the Company’s
operations|including Accounts, Finance, Taxation, Treasury and Regulatory Compliances
and will continue to oversee the same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized|to do all such acts, deeds, things and to take such steps as may be necessary and
incidental fo give effect to this Resolution.”

Registered Office By Order of the Board
204, Welspun House, Kamala City, For Geetanjali Trading and Investments

Lower Pazel West, Private Limited
Mumbeai- OODILS. .
Contact:(022)40016500

Email: gedtanjalitrading1979@gmail.com Prabhu Chettiyar
Website: geetanjaligroup.in Company Secretary

Date: 30t November, 2021
Place: Mumnbai




BER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT

NEED OT[ BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

THE PROXIES TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE
RED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A PERSON CAN ACT
AS P Om ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND
HOLDJING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY.

IN CASE PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER
HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, THEN SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT
ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

Membgrs attending the AGM are requested to bring with them the Attendance Slip
to the Annual Report duly filled in and signed and handover the same at

. Relevaht documents referred to the accompanying Notice and the statements are
open fpr inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company
between 1100 am. to 1.00 p.m. on all the working days excluding Saturdays,
Sundayfs & FPublic Holidays during the business hours up to the date AGM and the
same ig also javailable for inspection by the members at the meeting.

. A brief|profile of Mr. Bharat Ishwarlal Gosalia has been annexed with this notice as
per thelprovisions of Secretarial Standard - 2, as applicable to the Company.

. Explanatory|Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 has been
annexed to this notice for item nos. 2 and 3 of this notice.

Route Map of venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed to the Notice.




Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 2

M/s Kalyanhiwalla & Mistry LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai having Firm Registration
No: 104607W/ W100166, the present Statutory Auditors of the Company who was holding
office until the conclusion of 44 Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held in the year 2022,
have giver| notice in writing by expressing its ineligibility to continue due to completion of
permissible term of three years as mandated by RBI vide its Circular. DoS.
CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22, dated April 27, 2021.

Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 27 September 2021 has shortlisted M/s.
Khandhar Mehta & Shah, Chartered Accountants, bearing registration no. 125512W (KMS)
tory| Auditor of the Company out of the two proposals received by the Company
idelines issued by RBI. Another proposal was received from M/s. Natvarlal
artered Accountants, bearing registration number 106971W. The Board has

the applic

M/s. Khandhar Mehta & Shah, shall hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year
2024, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and
the Auditors.

Relevant documents/ certificates are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company during the business hours on any working days except Saturdays, Sundays &
Public Hol{days between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. upto the date of Annual General Meeting
and the same is also available at the Annual General Meeting for inspection by the members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are
concemed pr interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2 of
the notice. The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2
of the notice for approval by the members.




Item No. 3
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None of the Djrectors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are
concerned [or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3, for
the approval of the shareholders.

Registergd Office By Order of the Board
204, Welspun House, Kamala City, For Geetanjali Trading and Investments
Lower Pakel West, Private Limited

Mumbai-400013.

Contact:((022)40016500

Email: geetanjalitrading1979@gmail.com

Website: geetanjaligroup.in Prabhu Chettiyar
Company Secretary

Date: 30t [November 2021
Place: Mumbai




DETAILS

OF DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER THE

SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETING (552):

Name of the Director

Mr. Bharat 1. Gosalia

DIN 09169451

Date of Birth 29/04/1956

Date of firdt appointment on | 27th September, 2021

the board

Experience He has 40 years of experience in Corporate Finance,
Accounts, Taxation Corporate Governance etc and was
associated with many listed and unlisted entities in the
past.

Qualificatipn Chartered Accountant

Terms and Comflitions Of Proposed to be appointed as Non Executive Professional

Appointm¢nt Director

» Rerhuneration sought | 4,00,000/- p.m.
out|to be paid

¢ Remuneration last

4,00,000/- p.m.

drapvn

Other Diregtorship NIL

Membership/Chairmanships

of Committee
Name of the Member/Chairman | Name of the
Company Committee
Geetanjali Member Group Risk
Trading and Management
Investments Pvt. Committee
Lid.

Shareholding in the NIL

Company

Relationship with other No relation with any of the Directors, Managers, Key

Directors, Nlanagers, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

Managerial| Personnel (KMP)

1

Number offoard Meetings
attended dyring the year,
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RegiBtered

Folio No.

GEE

TANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U65990MH1979PTC021049
Office: 204, Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Parel West, Mumbai- 400013,

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be presented at the entrance)

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 43+
Annual Gengral Meeting of the Company at Homevilla, 48 Krishna Sanghi Path, Gamdevi,
Mumbai 400007, on Tuesday, 30" November, 2021, at 02:00 p.m.
PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE
ENTRANCE DF THE MEETING VENUE,
Signature of the Member/Proxy
o K
Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursdant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}
CIN ¢ [U65990MH1979PTC021049
Name of thHe i [GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITEL
company
Registered |office : 204, Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Parel West, Mumbai- 400013
Name of the Member(s):
Registered addrFss:
E-mail Id: ‘
Folio No. /[Client ID:
DPID:
1/ We, being the member(s) of shares of the above mentioned company, hereby
appoint
1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her
2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her
3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:




as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 43¢ Annual General
Meeting of tHe Company, to be held on Tuesday, 30* day of November, 2021 at 02:00 p.m. at Homevilla, 48

Krishna Sanglpi Path
are indicated pelow;

, Gamdevi, Mumbai 400007 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as

Resolution
No.

PaTimlars of Resolution

For

Against

1.

To peceive, consider and adopt;

To
the

To
Exe

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31¢* March, 2021 along with the Reports
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the
Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2021.

appoint M/s. Khandhar Mehta and Shah as Statutory Auditors of
Company in the place of Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP in accordance
h the guidelines issued by RBL

appoint Mr. Bharat Gosalia {DIN:09169451) as a Director {Non
cutive/Professional) of the Company.

Signed this

day of

, 2021

Signature of the

Signature of first

Proxy holder

Note: Thisform

attheRe

commencgmen

Shareholder

Signature of second
Proxy holder

Proxy holder

Signature of third

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
tered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
t of the Meeting.



GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

U65990MH1979PTC021049
DIRECTORS” REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Forty Third Annual Report of the Company and
the audited financial statements for the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2021.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE (Financial Highlights);

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Rs. 10 each (Basic & Diluted)

Particulars Standalone (Rs. In Lakhs) Consolidated {(Rs. in lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Operating Revenue 2775.25 9130.09 57774.21 69789.66
Profit on sale of long term - 58201.70 - 58201.70
investments
Other Income 0.28 377.39 243.89 387.23
Total Income 2775.53 67709.18 568018.10 128378.59
Total Expenditure 3465.79 7694.18 57262.28 67422.52
Profit/Loss before extra-ordinary (690.25) 60015.00 755.82 60956.07
item
Exceptional Item - - 209.06 (322.15)
Profit/Loss beforeTax (690.25) 60015.00 964.88 60633.92
Less: Provision for Tax
Current (525.80) {2406.07) (1485.61) 2617.63
Earlier Year 75.63 - 100.99 (25.94)
Deferred Tax - - 34596 141.18
MAT Credit entitlement - - (252.61) (57.74)
Profit/Loss After Tax (1140.42) 57608.93 {326.40) 57958.79
Less: Minority Interest - - (118.51) (152.54)
Add: Share of Profit from Associates - - - -
(1140.42) 57608.93 {444.91) 57806.25
Net P/L atiributable to Shareholders
Add: Balance at the Beginning of the (22272.66) (68359.80) [ (1386741) (60183.86)
year
Less: Appropriations . - - - 11.61
Less; Transfer to Statutory Reserves - (11521.79) - (11521.79)
Less: Capital Redemption Reserve - - {1490.48) -
Less: Reversal due Preference share - - (43.99) -
redemption
Balance at the end of the year (23413.08) (22272.66) (15846.78) {13887.79)
Balance Carry Forward to Balance {23413.08) (22272.66) | (15846.78) (13887.79)
Sheet
Earnings per share of face value of (80.22) 4052.45 (31.30) 4066.33




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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OPERATIONS:

Standalone:

During the year Standalone Operating Revenue decreased to Rs. 2775.53 Lakhs as
Compared to Rs. 9130.09 Lakhs in the previous financial year largely due to higher Interim
dividend in the previous year. There is no profit on sale of Investments. The Company

incurred a loss of Rs. 1140.42 lakhs as compared to the profit in the previous financial year
of Rs. 57608.93 Lakhs.

Consolidated

During the financial year 2020-21 the company incurred consolidated Loss of Rs. 326.40
Lakhs (After Tax) as compared to Profit of Rs. 57958.79 Lakhs in the previous financial year
2019-20. '

DIVIDEND:

In absence of distributable profit, the Directors do not recommend any dividend on Equity
Shares for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL:

‘The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 16,26,40,000 divided into 62,60,000
equity shares of Rs. 10 each, 80,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each, 20,00,000 Preference
Shares of Rs.10 each, 150 Preference Shares of Rs.100 each and 250 Non ~ Cumulative-
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100 each. The paid-up equity share capital of the
company is Rs. 1,42,15,840/- divided into 14,21,584 equity shares of Rs. 10 each as at 31+
March 2021. During the financial year under review, there was no change in the Share
Capital of the Company.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

During the Financial Year 2020-21 the Company has not registered any transfer of shares.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAS OCCURRED BETWEEN
THE END QF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of
the Company which has occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

In view of no profit, there was no transfer made to reserves.
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NON-ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS:

During the Year, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended). There was no deposit outstanding as on March 31, 2021. In accordance with the
requirements of RBI Directions, the Board at its first meeting or through Resolution by
Circulation prior to 30* April of each year passes the Resolution for Non-Acceptance of Public
Deposit.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO:

Your Company is engaged in the business of holding securities and investments in the form of
Shares, warrants, debentures and other Securities largely of Group companies. Its activities do
not involve any expenditure on Technology and Research and Development; therefore, the
other particulars as per the Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not required to be
submitted. The Company is not energy intensive. However, every effort is made to ensure
optimum use of energy by using energy- efficient computers, processes and other office
equipments. Constant efforts are made through regular/ preventive maintenance and upkeep
of existing electrical equipment to minimize breakdowns and ioss of energy.

The Company is continuously making efforts for induction of innovative technologies and
techniques required for the business activities. Foreign Exchange earnings and Foreign
Exchange Outgo have remained nil during the year.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

As on 31+ March 2021, Mr. Ashwin S. Dani (DIN 00009126), Mrs. Ina A. Dani (DIN: 00053695),
and Mr. Harish N. Motiwalla (DIN: 00029835) were the Directors of the Company.

Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar continued as the Company Secretary of the Company.

Mr, Bharat Gosalia resigned as the Group Financial Advisor and Principal Officer of the
Company w.e.f 30* April 2021. The Board at its meeting held on 27* April 2021 had proposed
to induct Mr, Bharat Gosalia as the member on the Board which was subject to approval of
RBI. In accordance with the same the Company has received approval of RBI vide its letter
dated 23 August 2021.

Subsequently, the Board at its meeting held on 27" September 2021 has approved the
appointment of Mr. Bharat Gosalia as an Additional Non-Executive Director (Professional)
and he shall hold office upto the date of ensuing AGM in accordance with Section 161 of the
Companies Act 2013. The notice of AGM dated 30" November 2021 contains special business
item to regularise the appointment of Mr. Bharat Gosalia as a Director of the Company.

The Board has also approved the payment of remuneration to Mr. Bharat Gosalia for seeking
his guidance, advise and suggestions from time to time on the various regulatory and
legislative amendments, continuous need of maintaining and servicing debts of the company,
adhering to CIC Directions of RBI etc. The terms of appointment and payment of



GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

U65990MH1979PTC021049

Remuneration to Mr. Bharat Gosalia is in accordance with the agreement entered between
him and the Company.

Mr. Mukesh Desai was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and Principal Officer of the
Company w.e.f 1 May, 2021. Mr. Mukesh Desai is a Chartered Accountant by profession
having more than 32 years of experience in Finance and Accounts.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
315T MARCH, 2021:

During the year under review, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The details of
the meetings and presence are as below.

Sr. No. | Dates of the Meeting
1. 4t June, 2020
2. 16" June, 2020
3. 9* Qctober, 2020
4, 7% December, 2020
5. 29% January, 2021
6. 26t March, 2021

SI. No. | Name of the Director DIN No. of Meetings| No. of Meetings
Held attended

1) | Ashwin Suryakant Dani 00009126 |6 6

2) | Ina Ashwin Dani . 00053695 | 6 6

3) | Harish Motiwalla 00029835 | 6 6

Committees:

Following are the various Committees formed by the Company in accordance with RBI
notification no. RBI/2019-20/88 DOR. NBFC (PD) CC No. 102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4*
November, 2020.

1. Risk Management Committee (RMQC):

The Risk Management Committee consists of Principal Officer and Heads of various
verticals, who are responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by the Company
including liquidity risk. The composition of the RMC Committee members is as under:

Risk Management Committee :
Sr.No. | Name of  the Designation ‘Head/Member
Member
1. Mr. Bharat Gosalia* Principal Officer Head
2. Mr. Kalpesh Bajaria General Manager Member
3. Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar Company Secretary Member
4, Mr. Mukesh Desai** Principal Officer Head

*Resigned w.e.f. 30* April 2021
*Appointed as the Principal Officer w.e.f 1+ May 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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2.

During the year five RMC meetings were held on

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

03 August 2020, 20 Qctober 2020, 7% December 2020, 28 January 2021, 25* March
2021 and all the members were present;

Asset Liability Managment Committee (ALCO):

The ALCO Committee is responsible for ensuring adherence to risk tolerance/ limits set
by the Board as well as implanting the liquidity risk management strategy of the
Company. The composition of the ALCO Committee is as under:

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) :
Sr.No. | Name of the Designation Head/Member
Member
1. Mr. Bharat Gosalia* Principal Officer Head
2. Mr. Kalpesh Bajaria General Manager Member
3. Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar Company Secretary Member
4 Mr. Mukesh Desai** Principal Officer Head

*Resigned w.e.f. 30" April 2021

**Appointed as the Principal Officer w.e.f 1 May 2021

During the year five ALCO meetings were held on ;

03+ August 2020, 20+ October 2020, 7* December 2020, 28t January 2021, 25* March
2021 and all the members were present.

3. Group Risk Management Committee (GRMC):

In view of no identifiable parent CIC in the group, the Company being the CIC with the large asset
size, constituted a Group Risk Management Committee {GRMC). The GRMC reports to the Board
of the CIC that constituted it and shall meet at least once in a quarter. The composition of GRMC
shall be as under: :

(i) The GRMC is comprised minimum of five members, including executive members.
(ii) Independent director, is the Chairperson of the GRMC.
(iii) Members have adequate experience commensurating with the risk management practices of

the company.

Group Risk Management Committee

Sr no | Name of the person Designation Chairman/Member
1. | Mr. Harish Motiwala Independent Director | Chairman
2. | Mr. Bharat Gosalia* Principal Officer Member
3. | Mr. Kalpesh Bajaria General Manager Member

Accounts and
. Finance

4. | Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar Company Secretary | Member
5. | Mr. Viraf Mehta Special Invitee Member
6. | Mukesh Desai** Principal Officer Member
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*Resigned w.e.f. 30t April 2021

**Appointed as the Principal Officer w.e.f 1% May 2021

During the year 1 (one) GRMC meeting held on 26 March 2021 all the members were
present at the meeting.

AUDITORS’ REPORT:

The Statutory Auditors” report for the year ended on 31 March, 2021 does not contain any
qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under provisions of Section 143(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

AUDITORS:

At the Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2017, M/s. Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No: 104607W/W100166), were appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five years to hold the office till the
conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2022.

However, in view of Notification no DOS.CO.ARG/SEC.01 /08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27,
2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India applicable to all the CICs, the statutory auditors holding
office for over three years need to be rotated.

M/s. Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP have given notice in writing by expressing its ineligibility to
continue due to completion of permissible term of three years as mandated by RBI vide its
Circular. DoS. CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22, dated April 27, 2021.

Accordingly, the Company has identified and short listed M/s. Khandhar Mehta & Shah,
Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 125512W) as Statutory Auditors for the period from the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2021 till the end of Annual General
Meeting to be held in 2024.

The Company has received the consent and eligibility in accordance with the following provisions
and the same were placed before the Board at its meeting held on said date;

1, The Board has received Consent in accordance with Section 139(1) and Eligibility
Certificate as per Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 (1) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

2, Eiigibility Certificate in FORM B in the attached format as per RBI guidelines for
appointment of SAs.

The Board has also recommended the appointment of M/s. Khandhar Mehta & Shah as the SA of
the Company for the approval of shareholders at the AGM notice appended along with this report.
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
Subsidiaries

As on March 31, 2021, Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited (HSSL), and Rituh Holding and
Trading Company Private Limited (Rituh) were the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and Hitech Corporation Limited was a listed subsidiary of the Company. During the
year, Hitech Insurance Broking Services Limited ceased to be the step down subsidiary of
Company w.e.f 31%t March, 2021.

During the year, Rituh through Ria Enterprises (a Partnership firm wherein Rituh is a 60%
partner) has acquired additional stake in Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited
(Paladin) upon conversion of Preference Shares into equity shares by Paladin. After such
conversion, Ria Enterprises has become 93.08% shareholder of Paladin. Thus, the Company is
holding 55.85% in Paladin indirectly and Paladin has become subsidiary during the year.

Associates

Pragati Chemical Limited (PCL) merged with Resins and Plastics Limited (RPL)with appointed
date of April 1, 2020 pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation approved by National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its order dated 8* July 2020.

With the said merger of PCL with RPL, PCL ceased to be an Associate of the Company.

Post merger holding of the Company in RPL is 8.08%. Hence, RPL is not an Associate of the
Company.

Joint Ventures

The Company does not have any Joint Venture Companies.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
prepared consolidated financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries and
associate companies which forms part of the Annual Report. A statement containing salient
features of the financial statements and other necessary information of the subsidiary
companies in the format prescribed under FORM-AOC-1 is included in the Annual Report as
Annexure ‘A’.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in
the design or operation was observed.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21:

The Company is registered as Core Investment Company with RBI. Thus, the provision of Section
186 except sub-section (1) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 the Directors state that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013 have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2021 and of the profit and loss of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

(c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis.

(e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

(f) The Directors have laid down proper internal financial control and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

REGISTRATION AS A CORE INVESTMENT COMPANY (“CIC")

The Company is registered as a Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important - Core Investment
Company (“CIC-ND-SI”) pursuant to the receipt of Certificate of Registration from the Reserve
Bank of India dated 24" May 2017, under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(“RBI Act”). During the financial year under review, the Company complied with all the
applicable regulations notified by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company is continuing operation as “Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important Core
Investment Company” (“CIC-ND-SI”).

(Please note that RBI does not accept any responsibility or guarantee of the present position as
to the financial soundness of the Company or the correctness of any of the statements or
representations made or opinions expressed by the Company and for repayment of deposits/
discharge of liabilities by the Company.)
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company laid down a Risk Management Policy, defining Risk profiles involving Strategic,
Technological, Operational, Financial, Organisational, Legal and Regulatory risks within a well
defined framework. The Risk Management Policy acts as an enabler of growth for the Company by
helping its businesses to identify the inherent risks, assess, evaluate and monitor these risks
continuously and undertake effective steps to manage these risks.

The Risk Management Committee consist of the members as mentioned hereinabove were
appointed in accordance with the requirements provided vide RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/88
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4" November 2020 to review the robustness
of the Risk Management Policy. The periodical update on the risk management practices and
mitigation plan of the Company were placed before the Board of Directors. The Board periodically
reviews updates and findings and suggest areas where internal controls and risk management
practices can be improved.

The Liquidity Risk Management (LRM) and Asset Liability Management (ALM) policies are in
place in accordance with the LRM Framework provided in CIC Directions. The Company
maintains and follows the systematic approach toward maintenance of ALM as per the prescribed
method. As prescribed under LRM Framework the Company is having the secured overdraft limit
of up to Rs. 20 crore as the contingency funding plan and maintains more than 90% of its freely
marketable securities in unencumbered form.

CREDIT RATING

BRICKWORK Ratings had assigned a rating of “BWR AAA (CE)” [Pronounced as BWR Triple
A (Credit Enhanced) Outlook Stable] rating for Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees five hundred crore
only) valid till 23« March 2021. Out of Rs. 500 crore the Company had issued Rs. 425,00,00,000
(Rupees Four Hundred Twenty Five Crore only) Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD") on
private placement basis to various mutual fund schemes of ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund of
which the outstanding balance at the beginning of the year was Rs 125,00,00,000 only. IDBI
Trusteeship Services Limited, a SEBI registered trustee was the Debenture Trustee to the issue.

The Company redeemed the balance of Rs. 125 Crore NCD at its due date on 19% June 2020
along with the redemption premium and the outstanding balance reduced to NIL.

The Company does not have any outstanding Non-Convertible Debentures pending for
redemption. Consequently the rating on said securities has not been renewed further.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time,
extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed as Annexure — B to this report. A copy of

the same is available at https://geetanjaligroup.in/display/investor
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s.
Robert Pavrey & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company. The Report of the Secretarial Auditors is attached as “Annexure - C".

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

During the financial year under review, the Company has no employee covered under Rule 5(2)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as
amended.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transactions
with related parties which were not in the ordinary course of business or not on arms’ length
basis. The Company had not entered into any transaction with related party that could be
considered as material. The related party transactions are disclosed under the Notes to Financial
Statements for the year 2020-21.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1),
as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure - D.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There is no change in the nature of business carried on by the Company. The Company has not
changed the class of business in which the Company has an interest.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY:

The Company does not have prescribed number of employees to frame the policy on Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of
Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013. However, as a good
governance the Company always follows the strict guidelines to protect the women at our
workplace from such inhumanity.

The company did not receive any such complaints during the year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR"):

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not eligible
for CSR and the gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was NIL.
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REGISTERED OFFICE:
With a view to have convenience of space and travelling, the Company has shifted its Registered
Office of the Company from the existing to new premises located at 204, Welspun House, Kamala

City, Lower Parel West, Mumbai — 400013. This location is nearby to Lower Parel railway station,
Mumbeai.

OTHER DISCLOSURES
Your Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2021:

a) has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.

b) There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts and
tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company’s operations in future.

¢) The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend,
voting or otherwise.




i

DISCLOSURES AS PER RBI:

The following shall be disclosed by the CIC with regard to group entities that are not consolidated in the CFS:

Srno  [Name of the entities Type of Debt-equity ratio | Asset size (Rs. In |Profitability of last two|Nature and type of exposure|
business Crores} years (Rs. In Crores) on the entity
vestment of K5. :
Crores in the equity shares of
FY 2019-20 - 2653.95 Asian paints Limited being
Paint FY 2020-21 - 305251 4.77% of its total
1]Asian Paints Limited Manufacturing 0.002 17582.67 shareholding
Investment of Rs. 2.35 Crores
in the equity shares of Resins
Manufacturer of FY 2019-20- 8.57 and Plastics Limited being
2|Resins and Plastics Limited |Synthetic Resins 013 97.29{FY 2020-21 - 11.68 8.08%
Investment of Ks. 0.0004
Manufacturer of Crores in the equity shares of
Speciality FY 2019-20- 23.17 Gujarat Organics Limited
3|Gujarat Organics Limited [Chemicals 0.05 155.28|FY 2020-21 — 50.28 being 0.50%
13 v \i
Srno  |Name of the entities Total exposure|{Loans and Investments byl
of the CIC|Advances tothely,. |oanee of ihe
towards  non-|firms/Compani |y in the shares
financial Les in which of parent
business (Rs. In|Directors are company and|
Crores) interested group companies
1|Asian Paints Limited 1167.35|NIL NA
2|Resins and Plastics Limited 2.35|NIL NA
3|Gujarat Organics Limited 0.0004|NIL NA
Hitech Corporation
Limited# 67.64|NIL NA
Hitech Specialities
5|Solutions Limited# 0.011]NIL NA
Rituh Holding an Trading
6{Company Private Limited# 0.01|NIL NA
Hitech Insurance Broking
7{Services Limited*# - [NIL NA
Paladin Paints and
Chemicals Private
8jLimited**# - NIL NA

*Step down subsidiary upto 30th March 2021
**Step down subsidiary w.e.f 27th February 2021
#Consolidated in the Consolidated Financials Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2021




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
U65990MH1979PTC021049 ’

ii.  Miscellaneous Disclosures as per RBI:

Registration/ ficence/ authorisation, by
whatever name called, obtained from other
financial sector regulators

Penalties imposed by RBl and other
regulators including strictures or directions
on the basis of inspection reports or other
adverse findings

If the auditor has expressed any modified
opinion(s) or other reservation{s) in his
audit report or limited review report in
respect of the financial results of any
previous financial year or quarter which
has an impact on the profit or loss of the
reportable period, with notes on -

(i) How the modified opinion(s) or other
reservation(s) has been resolved; or

(ii} If the same has not been resolved, the
reason thereof and the steps which the CIC
intends to take in the matter.
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A, REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies act, 2013 read with The Companies (Management and administration)

Rules, 2014]

FORM NO. MGT-9

ANNEXURE A

CIN U65990MH1979PTC021049

Registration Date 22/02/1979

Name of the Company GEETANJALI-TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Category of the Company COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

Sub-Category of the Company

INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT COMPANY

Address of the Registered office and contact details:

204, Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Parel West, Mumbai -
400013 Contact: 022 4001 6500

Whether listed company

No

ISIN (Equity):

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

Link Intime India Private Limited
C 101, 247 Park, LBS Rd, Surya Nagar, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai, Maharashtra 430083.

INE656J01012

B, PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

Sr. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of % to total turnover of the
No. the Product/ company
service
1. Activities of holding company . 64200 100%
C. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. | Name and address of the company CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidia | % of sharesheld | Applicable
No. ry/Associate Section
1. Hitech Corporation Limited L28992MH1991PLC168235 | Subsidiary 69.11 2(B87)(i1}
Unit No. 201, 2nd Floor, Welspun
House, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400
013.
2. Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited U65990MH1978PLC020745 | Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)
Unit No. 202, 2nd Floor, Welspun ’
House, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400
013.
3. *Hitech Insurance Broking Services U66000MH2008PLC181725 | Subsidiary *100% subsidiary 2(87)(ii)
Limited of Hitech
Unit No. 202, 2nd Floor, Welspun Specialities
House, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Solutions Limited
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400
013.




4, | Rituh Holding and Trading L U65900MH2013PTC245053 | Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)
Company Private Limited

3-A, Barodawala Mansion, 81 Dr. A
B Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 018.
5. Paladin Paints and Chemical Private U24220MH2007PTC169427 | Step down 55.85% 2(B7)(ii)
Limited"" Subsidiary
*Ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company (through HSSL) w.e.f 31 March, 2021.

**become step down subsidiary w.e.f 27* February 2021.

D. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders the year Chan
ge
durin
g the
year
Demat Physic | Total % of Demat Physical | Total % of
al Total Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 13,37,900 | 83,684 | 14,21,584 | 100.00 {-13,37,900 | 83,684 14,21,584 | 100.00 | -

b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

¢} Bodies - - - - - - - - .
Corporates

d) Banks / FI . - - - - - - - )

e) Any Other.... - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (1):- 13,37,900 | 83,684 | 14,21,584 | 100.00 | 13,37,900 | 83,684 14,21,584 | 100.00 | -

2) Foreign

a} NRIs - - - - - - - - - -
Individuals

b} Other - - - - - - - - - -
Individuals

¢) Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Corporates* :

d) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - - -

e} Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -

Total shareholding of 13,37,900 | 83,684 | 14,21,584 | 100.00 | 13,37,900 | 83,684 14,21,584 | 100.00 | -
Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)2)




B. Public
Shareholding

1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b)Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt.

d)State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g)Flls

h)Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2) Non-Institutions

a} Bodies Corp.

i, Indian

ii. Owverseas

b) Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (Specify)

i. Clearing Members

ii. NRI

Sub-total (B){2):

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(BX1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

13,37,900

83,684

14,21,584

100.00

13,37,900

83,684

14,21,584

100.00




Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the
of the year Year
:If:; Shareholder’s Name No. of Shares  {% of total Yoof Shares [No. of % of total  [Yoof Shares ;;::leat:l (ﬁ;ﬁg
) Shares of the [Pledged/ ([Shares Shares of the[Pledged / during the
company ncumbered company (encumbere
o total dtototal 5"
hares ishares
1. Ashwin Suryakant 255973 18 0 255973 18 0 0
Dani
2. [Ina Ashwin Dani 227521 16 0 227521 16 0 0
3. |Ashwin Suryakant 469045 33 0 469045 33 0 0
[Dani jointly with Ina
Ashwin Dani
4. [[na Ashwin Dani 469045 33 0 469045 33 0 0
jointly with Ashwin
Suryvakant Dani
Total 14,21,5841 100 0 14,21,5841 100 0 0
ii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
There is no change in the shareholding during the year 2020-21.
Sr Shareholders Shareholding at the Date Reason Increase/Decrease in | Cumulative Shares
No | Name beginning of the year as Shareholding during
on 1,4.2020 the year
No of % of total No of % of total | No of % of tatal
shares Shares shares Shares shares Shares
of the of the of the
Company Company Company
{ Ashwin 255973 18 | 01.04.2020 | - - - - -
Suryakant No Change | - - - - -
Dani 31.03.2021 | At the end| - - 255973 18
of the year
| Ashwin 469045 33 | 01.04.2020 | - - -
Suryakant Dani No Change | - - -
jointly with Ina 31.03.2021 | At the end | - - 469045 33
Ashwin Dani of the year
{ Ina Ashwin 227521 16 | 01.04.2020 | - - - - .
Dani No Change | - - - - -
31.03.2021 | At the end | - - 227521 16
of the year
| Ina Ashwin 469045 33 | 01.04.2020 | - - -
Dani jointly No Change | - - -
with Ashwin 31.03.2021 | At the end | - - 469045 33
Suryakant Dani of the year




iii.

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs): Nil
Sr | Shareholders | Shareholding  at | Date | Reason | Increase/Decrease | Cumulative Shares during the
No | Name the beginning of. in Shareholding year
the year
Noof | % of total Noof | % of total | No of | % of total
shares | Shares shares | Shares shares | Shares
of the of the of the
Company Company Company
iv. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr No | Shareholders | Shareholding at the Date Reason | Increase/Decrease in | Cumulative Shares
Name beginning of the year as Shareholding during
on 1.4.2019 ) the year
No of % of total No of % of total | No of % of total
shares Shares shares Shares shares Shares
of the of the of the
Company Company Company
1. | Ashwin 255973 18 | 01.04.2020 | - - - - -
Suryakant No Change | - - - - -
Dani 31.03.2021 At the | - - 255973 18
end of
the year
2, | Ashwin 469045 33 | 01.04.2020 | -
Suryakant No Change | - |
Dani jointly 31.03.2021 | At the 469045 33
withIna end of
Ashwin Dani : the year
3. | Ina Ashwin 227521 16 | 01.04.2020 | - - - - -
Dani No Change | - - - - -
31.03.2021 At the | - - 227521 16
end of
the year
4. | Ina Ashwin 469045 33 | 01.04.2020 | -
Dani jointly No Change | -
with Ashwin 31.03.2021 | At the 469045 33
Suryakant end of
Dani the year




E. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Figures in Lakhs
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits Total
excluding Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the
financial year
i. Principal Amount 34603.94 - - 34603.94
ii. Interest due but not Nil - - Nil
paid .
tii. Interest accrued but 3479.94 - - 3479.94
not due
Total {i+ii+iii) 38083.88 - - 38083.88
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
¢ Addition 15000.00 - - 19000.00
e Reduction 22375.14 - - 22735.14
Net Change -3375.14 - - -3375.14
Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year
i. Principal Amount 34603.52 - - 34603.52
ii. Interest due but not - - - -
paid ’
iii. Interest accrued but 105.22 - - 105.22
not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 34708.74 - - 34708.74

F. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.

Remuneration to Managing Director/WTD/Manager:

Sr.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Gross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income tax Act, 1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

¢) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

olo(o|lo|o

Commission

- As % of profit

- Others, specify

Others, please specify — Retirement Benefits

Total

Ceiling as per the Act




B. Remuneration to Directors:

a. Independent Director Amount in Lakhs
Partiulars .| Harish Total
Motiwalla | amount

Fee for attending Board/Committee 0.60 0.60
Meetings

Commission - -
Others - -

Total (I) 0.60 0.60

b. Other Non-Executive Directors
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total amount
Ashwin § Dani Ina A. Dani
Fee for attending Board/Committee 0.60 0.60 1.20
Meetings '
Commission - -
Others - -
Total (If) - -
TOTALB - -
Total Managerial Remuneration (A + B) 0.60 0.60 1.20
Overall Ceiling Limit as per the - - -
Companies Act, 2013

C. Remuneration of Other Key Managerial Personnel:

S1. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
no.

CEO Cs CFO

1. Gross salary i -1 10,92,372 -

a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -

¢. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 - - -

2. Stock Option _ - - -

w

Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission - - -

* As % of profit - - -

 Others, please specify - - -

5. Others- Retirement benefits - - -

Total . - 10,92,372 -




G. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority Appeal made,
the Description | Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/Court] | if any ({(give
Companies Compounding  Fees details)
Act imposed
A. Company
Penalty - - - ' - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B.  Other Officers in Default
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C.  Other officers in default
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of offences for breach of any section of Companies
Act against the Company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the financial year 2019-
20.

On behalf of the Board
For Geetanjali Trading & Investments Private Limited

“@%.7“./ W
_" L]
GAshwin S. Dani G)Iml A. Dani
Director (DIN 00009126) Director (DIN00053695)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30% November 2021






SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2021 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions

of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and various rules (“Rules”’) made thereunder; and
(i1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

However, the Company as a promoter of a listed entity has filed disclosures and complied with the
following SEBI regulations to the extent of its applicability:

(1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011.

(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.



We further report that, there were no events/actions in pursuance of:

(1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(ii1)) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

(vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

(vii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(viii)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Audit Period.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied
with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

° Master Direction — Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Non-Executive Directors and Independent Director, though the Company is not required to have
Independent Directors. There is no change in the composition of the Board of Directors which took
place during the period under review, which required compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except for the board meetings held on June 4, 2020
and June 16, 2020, which were held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. All decisions at Board Meetings
are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the respective meetings of the Board thereof.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.



We further report that, during the Audit Period, there were no events occurred which had a bearing on
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 17, 2021

For ROBERT PAVREY & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

ROBERT
PAVREY

Digitally signed by ROBERT PAVREY
DN: en

ROBERT PAVREY
Proprietor

FCS 2928 CP. No. : 1848
UDIN: F002928C000335084

This report is to be read with Annexure A which forms an integral part of this report.



To,

“Annexure A”

The Members
Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Whereever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For ROBERT PAVREY & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

RO B E RT Digitally signed by ROBERT PAVREY
DN: cn=ROBERT PAVREY, c=IN,
st=MAHARASHTRA, o=Personal,
serialNumber=f093afec721ec486a41eee
P AV R EY 32fdaca0ad78aa14d6i6980d8 1e 1a2bba
adbbcbae
Date: 2021.05.17 16:37:50 +05'30"

Place: Mumbai ROBERT PAVREY
Dated: May 17, 2021 Proprietor

FCS 2928 CP. No. : 1848
UDIN: F002928C000335084



To,
The Board of Directors,
Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

We have been engaged to conduct the secretarial audit (“Audit”) of the records of Geetanjali Trading
and Investments Private Limited (“Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021. In view
of the situation arising because of the Covid-19 pandemic across the world, the government of India
had announced a State restriction on all commercial establishments, other than those providing essential
services, with effect from April 14, 2021 (“Curfew Date”). The restriction is binding on the state of
Mabharashtra where the registered office of the the Company is stituated, during which period physical
access and entry to the registered office of the Company has been restricted.

Since the secretarial audit is an ongoing process, after the restriction Date levied by the government of
Mabharashtra, for the purposes of completion of the Audit, we have been provided soft copies of
documents, registers, books and papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company. The information and books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records provided for our verification are in the non-editable and printable format.

However, after the restriction is lifted in the state of Maharashtra where the registered office of the
Company is situated, we request you to provide us the relevant copies of extract of signed documents
for our records.

We believe that books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company though provided to us through in electronic form are the same as the physical records
maintained by the Company at its registered office.

For ROBERT PAVREY & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

R O B E RT Digitally signed by ROBERT PAVREY
DN: cn=ROBERT PAVREY, c=IN,

RASHTRA, o=Personal,

:le:ri imber=f093afec721ec486a41ee
P AV R E Y e32fdaca0ad78aal4d6f61980d81e1a2b
baa9bbcbae
Date: 2021.05.17 16:38:04 +05'30"
Place: Mumbai ROBERT PAVREY
Dated:May 17, 2021 Proprietor

FCS 2928 CP. No. : 1848
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS:
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as

the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the standalone financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

OQur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial .
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, based on the draft Directors Report

provided to us.

LLP IN : AAH - 3437

REGISTERED OFFICE : ESPLANADE HOUSE, 29, HAZARIMAL SOMANI MARG, FORT, MUMBAI 400 o001

TEL.: (91} (22) 6158 6200, 6158 7200 FAX : [g91) {z2) 6158 6275
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments’
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a frue and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intenitional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for-
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

o  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
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uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the’
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account. .

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(¢} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements.

(g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, there is no remuneration paid / provided by the Company during the year. So the,
provisions of section 197 of the Act, does not apply.




. KALYANIWALLA
&% MISTRY LLP

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we further report that:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii.  The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were.
any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104607W / W100166

N e i

Roshni R, Marfatia

Partner

Membership No: 106548

UDIN: 21106548 AAAAEA6516
Place : Mumbai

Date : June 30, 2021
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independént Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Para 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our Repart to the Members of
the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Statement on Matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program for physical verification of fixed assets by which all the fixed assets
are verified at the end of the financial year. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. '

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced
before us, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Compary.

2. The Company is a Systematically Important - Non Deposit - Core Investment Company. Accordingly, the
Company does not have any physical inventory. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, and limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (a)
and (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan to parties
covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has not given any loans or guarantees
and being an investment company; its investments are exempted under section 186 (11) (b), hence, the Company"
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits, from
the public as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India, to which the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or
any other applicable provisicons of the Act and the rules framed there under apply. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company:.

6. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the
Companies Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including dues pertaining to provident fund,
employees” state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, profession tax, cess and any other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no undisputed dues which have remained outstanding as at the end of the financial year, for a period of more .
than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax,
goods and service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax which have not been deposited
on account of any disputes.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced
before us, there has been no default in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or debenture
holders. There were no loans or borrowings taken from the banks and government during the year.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). The monies raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which those were raised. .

Based upon the audit procedures performed by us, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, no fraud by the Company or fraud on the Company
by its officers or employee has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not paid / provided any managerial remuneration which requires approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced
before us, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable
and the details thereof have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting.
standards. Since this is a private limited company, provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced
before us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xiv) of the Order are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced
before us, the Company has not has entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xv) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is registered under section 45 — IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Systematically
Important - Non Deposit - Core Investment Company.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104607W / W100166

ueAD

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner
Membership No: 106548

UDIN: 21106548 AAAAEAG516
Place : Mumbai
Date : June 30, 2021
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Para 2 {f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2021:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements of
GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as at March 31,2021
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to the standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
cxtent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit io obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to these standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's
internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of these standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinicn

In our opinion, to the best of out information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control with reference to these standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104607W / W100166

pet’2

Roshni R. Marfatia

Partner

Membership No: 106548

UDIN: 21106548AAAAEAG516
Place : Mumbai

Date : June 30, 2021




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U65990MH1979PTC021049
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

[INR in lakhs]
Particulars Note No. As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Shareholders’ funds

{a) Share capital 3 142.16 142.16
{b) Reserves and surplus 1 91,430.16 92,670.58
91,572.32 92,712.74

{2) [Non-current liabilities

(a) Long Term Borrowings 5 9,000.00 11,500.00
(b} Long-term Provisions 6 13.83 5.38
9,013.83 11,505.38
{3} [Current liabilities
(2) Short Term Borrowings 7 25,603.52 10,603.94
(b) Other Current Liabilities 8 188.28 16,037.04
(c) Short term Provisions 9 8.85 12.35
25,800.65 26,653.33
1,26,386.80 1,30,871.45
il. JASSETS h
(1) [Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 10 & 10A 44.50 55.79
{b) Non-current Investments 11 19,111.60 20,584.93
{c} Long-term Loans and Advances 12 157.79 93.18
19,313.89 20,733.90

{2) [JCurrent assets

{a) Current Investments 13 1,04,627.70 1,04,627.70
{b) Cash and Bank Balances 14 2,339.78 5,466.24
{c} Short term Loans & Advances 15 1.63 6.64
{d) Other current assets 16 103.80 36.97
1,07,072.91 1,10,137.55
1,26,386.80 1,30,871.45
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of Board of
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration number 104607 ' .——;%EA-«\Q"D""—
T

’

Ashwin S. Dani Ina A. Dani
Director Director

DIN: 00009126 DIN: 00053695

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner
Membership No.: 106548

Mukesh Desai abhu Chettiyar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021



GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U65990MH1979PTC021049
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

[INR in lakhs]
Particulars Note No. For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
1 Revenue from operations 17 2,775.25 9,130.09
2 Profit on Sale of Long Term Equity Investments 18 - 58,201.70
3 Other Income 19 0.28 377.39
4 Total Revenue 2,775.53 67,709.18
5 §Expensas:
Employee Benefits Expense 20 77.45 91.26
Finance costs 21 3,254.59 7,496.21
Depreciation expense 10 13.47 18.14
Other expenses 22 120.28 88.57
Total Expenses 3,465.79 7,694.18
6 |(Loss) / Profit before extraardinary items and tax (4-5) (690.25) 60,015.00
7 JExtraordinary ltems - -
8 |(Loss)} / Profit befare tax {6-7) (690.25) 60,015.00
9 |Tax expense:
- Current Tax {525.80) (2,406.07)
- Excess provision of tax relating to earlier year (net) 75.63 -
10 |{Loss} / Profit after tax (7-8) {1,140.42} 57,608.93
11 |Earnings per equity share: 23 '
{1) Basic (in INR) (80.22) 4,052.45
{2) Diluted (in INR) (80.22} 4,052.45
SiEnificant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report attached Eor and on behalf of Board of
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration number 104607W/W100166

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

=g Do

4
e e p——
Roshni R. Marfatia Ashwin S. Dani
Director

Partner

Membership No.: 106548 DIN; 00009126

Mukesh Desai
Chief Financiat Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2021

Ina A. Dani
Director
DIN: 00053695

rabhu Chettiyar
Company Secretary



GEETANJAL! TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : UBS990MH1979PTC021049
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021
[INR in Iakhs]]
For the year ended 31st March, For the year ended 31st March,
2021 2020

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - I
Net (Loss) / Profit before tax and extraordinary item {690.25) 60,015.00
Adfustments for :

Depreciation Expense 13.47 18.14

{Profit} / Loss on sale / redemption of long term investments 38.35 {58,201.70)

Profit on sale of mutual funds / Investments - (367.60)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - [0.50)

Finance costs 3,254.59 7,496.21

Write back of provision against standard assets - (9.29)

Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,616.16 8,950.27

Adjustments for changes in :

Decrease [ {Increase} in Loans and advances 5.00 {0.08)

{Increase) / Decrease in current assets {66.83) 1.40

Increase / (Decrease} in current liabilties and provisions 30.92 {19.06)

tash Generated from operations 2,585.25 8,932.53

Income Tax Paid [Net] {514.78 {2,403.98)

Net Cash generated from operating activities 2,070.47 6,528.54
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (2.18) {0.71)

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment - 0.50

Purchase of long term Investments (2.45) [44.33)

Proceeds from sale of long term equity investments - 61,433.34

Purchase of mutual funds - {13,943.96)

Proceeds from redemption of Preference shares 1,437.43 -

Proceeds from sale of mutual funds - 15,625.36

Fixed deposits with bank held under lien or in escrow account (net) {1,072.23) (35.59)“

Fixed deposits with bank (net) 765.59 (105.00)

Intercorporate deposits withdrawn - 2,318.71

Net Cash generated irom Investing Activities 1,126.16 65,248.32
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -

Proceeds from borrowings 19,000.00 17,103.94

Repayment of borrowings {6,500.43) (40,000.00)

Redemption of Non convertible redeemable debentures {12,500.00) (30,000.00)'

Finance costs paid {6,629.30) {14,744.28)

Net Cush used in Financing Activities {6,629.73) (67,640.34)

Net (Decrease}/increase in Cash and Cosh Equivelents {3,433.10) 4,136.52

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,150.65 14.13

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 717.55 4,150.65

JNotes:

1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of :

Balances with bank in current account 69.50 111.60
Balances with bank in deposit account 648.00 4,039.00
Cash in hand 0.05 0.05

717.55 4,150.65

2 The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method' as set outin AS 3 - 'Cash Flow Statements’.

3 Since the Company is a core investment company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of 'Cash flow from investing|
activities' and interest earned (net) - INR 164.31 lakhs {Previous Year - INR 169.70 lakhs) and dividend earned of INR 2,610.94 lakhs {Previous Year -
INR 8,960.30 lakhs) have been considered as part of 'Cash flow from operating activities'.

4 Direct taxes paid is treated as arising from operating activities and is not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

5 Figures in brackets are outflows/ deductions. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of Board of
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
AT _gz4do—
Roshni R. Marfatia Ashwin s. Dani ' Ina A. Dani
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 106548 DIN: 00009126 w

Mukesh Desai

Chief Financial Officer ompany Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021



Note 3:

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Share Capital [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
2021 2020
Authorised Shares
62,60,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 626.00 626.00
{Previous year: 62,60,000 Equity Shares of INR10/- each})
80,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 10/- each 800.00 800.00
{Previous year: 80,00,000 Preference Shares of INR10/- each)
20,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 10/- each 200.00 200.00
(Previous year: 20,00,000 Preference Shares of INR10/- each)
150 Preference Shares of INR 100/- each 0.15 0.15
{Previous year: 150 Preference Shares of INR 100/- each)
25 - ive-
0 Non-Cumulative-Redeemable Preference Shares of 0.25 0.25
INR 100/- each
{Previous year: 250 Non-Cummulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of INR 100/- each)
1,626.40 1,626.40
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up:
14,21,584 Equity Shares of INR 20/- each fully paid up 142.16 142.16
(Previous year: 14,21,584 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each)
Total 142.16 142.16
Reconcillation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
|Equity Shares As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
No. of Shares INR [in Lakhs] No. of Shares INR [in Lakhs]
At the beginning of the year 14,21,584 142.16 14,21,584 142.16
Add: issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end 14,21,584 142.16 14,21,584 142.16

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par of INR 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
company has not declared any dividend during the year. tn the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

by the shareholders.

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Name of Shareholders
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
Equity Shares
Ashwin S, Dani 7,25,018 51% 7,25,018 51%
ina A, Dani 6,596,566 49% 6,96,566 49%

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

There is no buy back/bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceeding reporting date.




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus

[INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2021 2020

Capital Reserve 50.02 50.02
Capital Redemption Reserve 507.91 507.91
Capital Reserve (On Amalagamation) 30,725.74 30,725.74
Capital Reserve (Current Investments) 67,347.93 67,347.93
Securities Premium Account 3,410.54 3,410.54
General Reserve 620.91 620.91
Special Reserve 658.40 658.40
Statutory Reserve 11,521.79 11,521.79
Balance in statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (22,272.66) (68,359.80)
Add : {Loss) / Profit for the year (1,140.42) 57,608.93
Less : Transferred to Statutory Reserve - (11,521.79)
Balance at the end of the year (23,413.08) (22,272.66)
Total 91,430.16 92,570.58




GEETANJAL! TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note5: Long-Term Borrowings [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2021 2020
Secured
Loans from Financial Institutions [Refer Note -1] 9,000.00 11,500.00
Less: Current maturity of long term borrowings - -
A 9,000.00 11,500.00
Debentures
125 Non-Convertible, Redeemable Debenture of INR 1 crore each, issued at par [Refer Note -2]
- 12,500.00
- 12,500.00
tess: Current maturity of long term debentures - 12,500.00
. B - -
Total (A + B) 9,000.00 11,500.00

1 Loans from Financial Institutions:
a) Loans from Financial Institutions carried interest rate @ 6.82 % to 940 % p.a. and repayable within 2 to 5 years from the date of

disbursement.
b} There were no defaults as on the balance sheet date in repayment of principal and interest.
¢} The borrowings are secured by pledging shares of Asian Paints Limited.




Note 6 ;

Note 7:

Note 8;

Note 9:

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

1. Demand Loans frem Financial Institutions:

Loans from Financial Institutions carried interest rate @ 6.82 % to 9.30 % p.a.
There were no defaults as on the balance sheet date in repayment of principal and interest.
The borrowings are secured by pledging shares 44,79,000 shares of Asian Paints Limited.
2. The overdraft facility taken from a bank is INR 9.50 crore {Previous Year - INR 5 crore) and carries interest rate of approx.
8.25% p.a. and is secured against the fixed deposits kept with the bank of same amount.

Long Term Provisions [INR in lakhs]
Asat3lstMarch, |, 315t March, 2020
2021
Provision for gratuity (unfunded) 8.50 3.92
Provision for compensated absences (unfunded) 5.33 1.46
Total 13.83 5.38
Short Term Borrowings [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 2020
2021
Secured
Demand Loan from financial institutions (Refer note 1 below) 25,500.00 10,500.00
Bank overdraft (Refer note 2 below) 103.52 103.94
Total 25,603.52 10,603.98
Note:

Other Cusrent Liabilities [INR in lakhs]
Asat3lstMarch, | o .t 316t March, 2020
2021
Current maturities of long term debentures - 12,500.00
Interest accrued but not due 105.22 3,479.94
Statutory liabilities 52.89 3581
Accrued expenses 14.85 10.28
Employee related payables 12.00 8.49
Other Liabilities 3.33 2,52
Total 188.28 16,037.04
Short -Term Provisions [INR in lakhs]
Asat31stMarch, | .+ 315 March, 2020
2021
Provision for gratuity {(unfunded) 0.20 6.17
Provision for compensated absences (unfunded) 0.21 6.18
Provision for taxation 8.44 -
8.85 12.35

Total




GEETANJAL TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 10 : Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 31st March, 2021

[INR in lakhs]
..... GrossBlock ----- ----.Depreciation----- -Net Block-
pescription of hssets owﬂﬁﬂ_w “,Ha Additions Deductions wuww H“ﬂnmmwwu aw”._ﬂ_mn_“_m“ w.wu.e For the year Deductions mu”.u ﬁﬁuﬂﬁwﬂup 315t _.H_.”_.: 2021
Tangible Assets :
Plot at Gujarat 6.15 - - .15 - - - - 8.15
Building Premises - Home Villa 1st Floor 422.51 - - 42251 373.13 12.91 - 386.08 36.43
Furniture & Fixtures - Home Vilia 15.00 - - 15.00 15.00 - - 15.00 0.00
Office Equipment 0.44 0.17 - 0.61 0.44 - - 0.44 0.17
Computers 1.59 2.01 - 1.60 139 0.46 - 1.85 1.75
Plant & Machinery 0.68 - - 0.68 0.62 0.06 - 0.68 0.00
Plant & Machinery - Home Villa 2.69 - - 2.69 2.69 - - 2.69 Q.00
TOTAL 449.06 2.17 - 451.24 393,27 13.43 -




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 10 A : Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 31st March, 2020

[INR in lakhs]
DescriptionofAssets ~ f 0 =---- GrossBlock =«--- | aaaaa Depreciation----- -NetBlock-
amw,_ﬂ__“_.uwn“o Additions Deductions mpﬂmﬂ”ﬂhﬁg omw._ﬂ_hu_ww.“”w For the year Deductions wh”_u_:mﬂn.wﬂg 315t _,.__M.M_._. 2020
Tangible Assets :
Plot at Gujarat* 6.15 - - 6.15 - - - - 6.15
Building Premises - Home Villa 1st Floor 42251 - - 422,51 355.66 17.47 - 373.13 49.38
Furniture & Fixtures - Home Villa 15.00 - - 15.00 15.00 - - 15.00 -
Office Equipment 0.44 - - 0.44 0.44 - - 0.44 -
Computers 1.22 0.37 - 1.58 1.01 0.38 - 139 0.20
Plant & Machinery 0.34 0.34 - 0.68 0.34 0.28 - 0.62 0.06
Plant & Machinery - Heme Villa 2.69 - - 2.69 2.69 - - 2.69 -
Motor Car 6.28 - 6,28 - 6.27 0.02 6.28 - -
TOTAL 454.63 0.71 6.28 449.06 381.41 18.15 6.28 393.27 55.79




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 11 : Non- current Investments

Name of the Body Corporate

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

No. of Shares

Amount
{INR in lakhs)

No. of Shares

Amount
(INR in lakhs)

Non-Trade Investments (valued at cost)

Quoted {fully paid up)

investment in Equity Shares:
- In Subsidiary

Hitech Corporation Limited (Face value INR 10/- each) 1,18,69,295 6,026.03 1,18,69,295 6,026.03
- In Company in which Directors and their relatives are
able to exercise significant influence
Asian Paints Limited {Refer Note (a} below) 1,33,77,100 12,138.84 1,33,77,100 12,133.84
[Face value of INR 1/- each ]
Unquoted {fully paid u
In House Property
Property at Worli - Tenancy rights - 3.30 - 3.30
Investment in Equity shares:
- in Subsidiaries
(a) Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited
10,50,000 1.11 10,50,000 1.11
{Face value INR 10/- each)
(b) Rituh Holding and Trading Company Private Limited 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
{Face value INR 10/- each)
- in Associates
Pragati Chemicals Limited {Refer Note (b) below} - - 82,000] 4,40
- In Company in which Directors and their relatives are
able to exercise significant influence
Resins and Plastics Limited (Face value INR 10/- each) (Refer 2.32.901 203.44 95,234 196.58
Note (b) below)
Investment in Preference Shares:
9% Preference shares of INR 10/- each
- In Subsidiary
Hitech Corporation Limited 71,87,127 737.80 2,15,61,381 2,213.67
Total 19,111.60 20,584.93
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 18,164.87 18,164.87
Aggregate market value of guoted investments 3,54,160.33 2,28,626.63
946.74 2,420.06

Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments

a. Investment Pledged against Borrowings

0Of the above tnvestments 41,04,000 shares [Previous Year 26,18,000 shares} are pledged against Borrowings.

b. During the year ended March 31, 2021, pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamatio
and Plastics Limited {Transferee Company), 136,667 shares were issued to the C

directly purchased from the Public shareholders.

n of Pragati Chemicals Limited (Transferor Company) with Resins
ompany in Resins and Plastic Limited. Further 1000 shares were




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 12 : Long Term Loans and Advances [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2021 2020
Unsecured, Considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Advance income tax {Net) 157.33 92.72
Security Deposits 0.46 0.46
Total 152.79 93.18
Note 13 : Current Investments [INR in lakhs]
Name of the Body Corporate As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
No. cﬁ;:: res / Amount No. c:j;::res/ Amount
Quoted (fully paid up)
Investment in Equity Shares:
- in Company in which Directors and its relatives
are able to exercise significant influence
Asian Paints Limited {Refer Note {a} below) 3,23,25,040 1,04,596.39 3,23,29,040 1,04,596.39
[Face value INR 1/- each ]
|Unguoted (fully paid w
Investments in Equity Shares:
- in Company in which Directors and its relatives
are able to exercise significant influence
(a) Gujarat Organics Limited {Face value INR 10/- each} 951 0.04 951 0.04
(b} Resins And Plastics Limited (Face value INR 10/- each) 1,04,233 31.27 1,04,233 31.27
Total 1,04,627.70 1,04,627.70
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 1,04,596.39 1,04,596.39
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 8,20,317.06 5,38,763.45
Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments 31.32 31.30

a. Investment Pledged against Borrowings:

Of the above Investments 3,75,000 shares of Asian paints Limited [Previous Year 36,50,000 shares] are pledged against Borrowings.




Note 14 :

»

Note 15:

Note 16:

Note 17 :

Note 18:

Note 19:

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Cash and Bank Batances [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 69.50 111.60
- in deposit account with maturity less than or equal to 3 months 648.00 4,039.00
Cash in hand 0.05 0.05
717.55 4,150.65
Qther bank balances
Bank Deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than
ane year {Refer Note {a) below) 1,622.23 1,315.559
1,622.23 1,315.59
Total (A + B) 2,339.78 5,466.24

(a} Bank Deposits includes an amount of INR 1072.23 lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 500 lakhs) held under lien towards security for

overdraft facility issued by the bank.

Short term Loans & Advances [INR in lakhs)
As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
2021 2020
Unsecured, Considered good {unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 0.07 3.61
Recovery from Employes 1.56 -
Reimbursement receivable from related party - 3.03
Total 1.63 6.64
Other Current Assets [INR in lakhs]
As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
2021 2020
Unsecured, Considered good (unless otherwise stated}
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 44.99 36.39
Other Current Assets 58.81 0.58
Total 103.80 36.97
Revenue from Operation [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
[a] Dividend received
[i}) From Non Current Investments
- from Subsidiary Company 379.07 0088
- from Associate Company - 6.15
- from Company in which Directors and its relatives are able
to exercise significant influence 2,231.87 8,652.64
[ii] From Current Investments
- Mutual funds - 0.63
{ib} Interest income
- from Inter corporate deposits - 175
- from fixed deposits 16431 168.04
Total 2,775.25 9,130.02
Profit on Sale of Long Term Equity Investments [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Profit on sale of long term equity investments - 58,201.70
Total - 58,201.70
Other income [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended | For the year ended
315t March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Profit on sale of mutual funds - 367.60
Excess provision against standard assets written back - 9.29
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipmenit - 0.50
Interest on income tax refund 0.28 -

0.28




Note 20:

Note 21:

Note 22 :

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Employee Benefits Expense [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Salaries, wages & bonus 72.61 74.81
Gratuity expense (net) * {1.39) 3.75
Expenses for compensated absences 2.82 8.96
Contribution to provident funds 3.39 3.67
Staff welfare expenses 0.02 0.07
Total 77.45 91.26
* includes transfer of gratuity amount for one employee.
Finance Costs [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Interest on term loan borrowings 2,920.93 3,183.23
(including redemption premium)
Interest on debentures 317.08 4,302.69
Interest on others 6.58 1.82
Ancillary borrowing costs 10.00 3.47
Total 3,254.59 7,496.21
Other expenses [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Electricity Expenses 1.57 2.56
Rent 14.16 22.11
Repairs and Maintenance 2.81 1.64
Insurance 0.10 0.15
Rates and taxes 0.09 0.09
Goods and services tax 5.18 6.52
Legal and Professional Fees 46.56 44.30
Director Sitting Fees 1.80 2.70
Payment to Auditor
- Audit Fees (includes INR 0.94 lakhs for previous year) 6.25 4.13
- Tax Audit Fees {includes INR 0.24 lakhs for previous year) 0.83 0.59
- Other audit services - 0.289
Travelling & Conveyance 1.25 0.68
Loss on sale of long term investments 38.35 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.32 2.21
120.28 88.57

Total




Note 23 :

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Earning Per Share [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Net (Loss) / Profit After Tax (1,140.42) 57,608.93
Less:- Preference Dividend - -
Net (Loss) / Profit available for equity share holders (1,140.42) 57,608.93
Weighted average number of equity shares 14,21,584 14,21,584
Earning per equity share:
-Basic {INR) {80.22) 4,052.45
-Diluted {INR) {80.22) 4,052.45




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 24 ; Contingeny Liability: Nil
Note 25 : Capital & Other commitments: Nil
Note 26 : Related Party Disclosures:

i. Subsidiaries

Current Year

Previous Year

Hitech Corporation Limited

Hitech Corporation Limited

Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited

Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited

Rituh Holding and Trading Private Limited

Rituh Holding and Trading Private Limited

Hitech Insurance broking Services Limited

Hitech Insurance broking Services Limited

ii. Associates

Current Year

Previous Year

Pragati Chemicals Limited *

Pragati Chemicals Limited

* During the current year,Pragati Chemicals Limited has amalgmated with Resins & Plastics Limited.

iii. Companies over which the Directors and their relatives can exercise significant influence.

Current Year

Previous Year

Asian Paints Limited

Asian Paints Limited

Resins & Plastics Limited

Resins & Plastics Limited

paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited

Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited

$.C Dani Research Foundation Private Limited

Gujarat Qrganics Limited

Avinash Holding and Trading Company Private

5.C Dani Research Foundation Private Limited

Avinash Holding and Trading Company Private Limited

iv. Directors

Current Year

Previous Year

Mr, Ashwin §. Dani

Mr. Ashwin S. Dani

Mrs. Ina A, Dani

Mrs. Ina A. Dani

Mr. Harish Motiwalla

Mr. Harish Motiwalla

v. KeyManagement Personnel (KMP}

Current Year

Previous Year

Mr. Bharat Gosalia

Mr. Bharat Gosalia Group Financial Advisor and Principal
officer

Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar

Mr. Prabhu Chettivar Company Secretary

Note: Related Party disclosure in respect of (iii} above is given only in respect of related parties with wh




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Related Party Transactions for Year - 2020-21 and 2019-20

{INR in lakhs}

Particulars

Subsidiaries of the
company

Companies over which the
Directors and their
relatives can exercise
significant influence

Assotiates

Directors Key Management

Personnel

201

18-20

20-21

19-20 20-21

19-20

20-21

19-20 20-21 19-20

Sale / Redemption of Invastment

Hitech Corporation Limited - Redemption of
Preference shares

1,475.78

Asian Paints Limited

Purthase of Investrment

Resins & Plastics Limited

2.45

Dividend Received

Hitech Corporation Limited

Asian Paints Limited

2,216.7%

Resins & Plastics Limited

15.13

Pragati Chemicals Limited

Interest Received

Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited

t of Loan Given

ray

Rituh Holding and Trading Private Limited

2,268.17

Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited

50.00 -

Expenses incurred on behalf of

Rituh Holding & Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd.

0.03

0.03

Avinash Holding & Trading Co.

0.03

0.03 -

$. C. Dani Research Foundation Pvt. Ltd.

0.03

0.03 -

Directors Sitting Fees

Mr, Ashwin 5. Dani

0.60 0.90 - -

Mrs, Ina A, Dani

0.60 0.90 - -

Mr, Harish Motiwalla

0.60 0.90 - -

Remuneration to

Mr. Bharat Gosalia

40.61 30.08

Mr. Prabhu Chettiar

10.92 10.14

Outstanding as at 315t March

Other receivabl

Hitech Corporation Limited

58.22

3.03




Note 27 :

A,

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Employee Benefit Expenses

Defined contribution Plan

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss under contribution to provident

and other funds as under:

(INR in lakhs)
For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020
Employers’ contribution to Provident Fund 3.39 3.67
Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity (unfunded) — as per actuarial valuation
(INR in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Reconciliation of opening & closing balances of Defined
Benefit
Present value of Benefit Obligation as on 31st March 2020 7.07 40.65
interest Cost 0.43 3.04
Current Service Cost 0.19 0.37
Benefits Paid - {37.33)
Acturial loss on obligation 1.01 0.34
Present value of Benefit Obligation as on 31st March 2021 8.70 7.07

{INR in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Net liability reccﬁnised in the Balance Sheet as at
Present value of defined benefit obligation {8.70) {7.07)
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet {8.70) (7.07)
{INR in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 0.19 0.37
Interest Cost on benefit obligation 0.43 3.04
Net acturial (gain) / loss on recognised during the year 1.01 0.34
Amount transferred for one employee ** (3.02) -
Net Benefit expenses (1.39)

** pertains to gratuity benefit transferred for one employee




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Actuarial assumptions 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Retirement Age 58,65 & 68 Years 58 & 60 Years
G.Sec Discount Rate 6.33% 6.04%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 1.00% 1.00%

Mortality Rate

Indian Assured Lives Mortality {2006-08} Ultimate

Amount recognised in current year and previous four years are as follows: -

(INR in lakhs)
Gratuity (Unfunded) As at March | Asat March | Asat March|Asat March | As at March
31,2021 31, 2020 31, 2019 31,2018 31, 2017
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation (8.70) (7.07) {40.65) {37.66) (28.99)
Plan Assets - - - - -
{Deficit)/ Surplus (8.70) (7.07) {40.65) {(37.66) {28.99)
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities [Loss / 114 0.13 0.12 5.56 2.73
(Gain}]
Experience adjustment on Plan assets - - - - -

a) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority,

promotion and other relevant factors including supply and dem
b) The discounting rate is considered based on market yield on government

the currency and terms of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Other long term benefits

The liability towards compensated absences for the year ended 31st Marc
by using Projected Unit Credit Method resulted in decrease in liability to INR 5.53 la

lakhs).

and in the employment market.
bonds having currency and terms consistent with

h, 2021 based on actuarial valuation carried out
khs (As on 31st March 2020: INR 7.64




Note 28:

Note 29 :

Note 30 :

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Defered Taxes

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred ta

x assets and liabilities are:

{INR in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Deferred Tax Assets
Difference between WDV of assets as per books of account and 0.95 1.09
income Tax Act 1961
Business Losses Carried Forward under the Income Tax Act 1,042.98 975.60
Expenses allowable under Income tax on payment basis 3.58 2.55
Total of Deferred Tax Assets 1,047.51 979.24
Add: Opening Balance - -
Net Deffered Tax Assets 1,047.51 970.24
Less: * Not Accounted 1,047.51 979.24
Net Deffered Tax Expense for the year - -
Closing Balance - -
Fareign Exchange Transactions

For the year ended March | For the year ended March 31,
31, 2021 2020

Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
Expenditure in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil

Disclosure With Regard To Dues To Micro And Small Enterprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45
days as at 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2020. This information as required to be disciosed under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information available with the Company,

Note 31 : Additiona! Disclosure As Required Under Sectlon 186 Of The Companies Act, 2013
a. Details of investments made are given in Note 12 and Note 14.
b. Details of loans given by the Company in accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued
thereunder.
{INR in lakhs}
Sr. No. | Name of | Purpose for which the % of interest Asat 31st | Asat3lst | Movement during the year
the loan is proposed to be March 2021 | March 2020 | [Additional given / (repaid)]
Company | utilised by the recipient
Rs. Nil
c. There is no guarantee given by the Company in accardance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued
there under.
Note 32 : Additional information pursuant to Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, has not been furnished, as the same Is not

applicable.

Note 33 : Movement Of Provisions During The Year

{INR in lakhs})

Particulars For the year| For the year

ended |ended March
March 31, 31, 2020

2021

Provision on Non-Performing assets NIL NIL

Provision on Non standard assets

Balance at the beginning of the year - 9.29

Reversed during the year - 9,29

Recognized during the year - -




s  Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

lote 34: DISCLOSURE REQUIRED AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA MASTER DIRECTION —- CORE INVESTMENT COMPANIES (RESERVE BANK} DIRECTIONS, 2016
The Company is Core Investment Company- Non Deposit taking —Systemically Important {CIC-ND-SI) Company having Certificate of Registration {CoR}
bearing registration no. B-13.02188 since 24th May, 2017 and hence, it is exempted from adherence to the following:

1) Submission of a Certificate from the Statutory Auditor's that it is engaged in business of non-banking financial institution and has an eligibility to
hold CoR under Section 45-1A of the RBI Act,1934.
2) The capital adequacy requirement {CRAR].

3} Concentration of Credit/ Investment.

The other disclosures which are required as per Master Direction- Core Investrnent Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are as follows:

{INR in lakhs]
sr. Amount Amount Amount Amount
No. Particulars Qutstanding Overdue Outstanding Overdue

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 315t March, 2020
LIABILITIES:
1{Loans and Advances availed by the CIC inclusive of interest accrued
{a) |Debentures: Secured - - 15,782.19 -
{b} [Deferred Credits - - - .
{¢) [inter-corporate loans and borrowing Secured 34,605.22 - 22,197.75 -
Unsecured - - - -
{d) [other Loans {Overdraft Facility - secured) 103.52 - 103.94 -
Sr. Particulars Amount Quistanding Amount Outstanding
No. As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
ASSETS SIDE:
2 |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivable (other than
those included in (4) below):
(a) |Secured - -
{b) |Unsecured
- Other Advances given 1.56 3.03
- Advance income tax (net} 157.33 92.72
- Security Deposits 0.46 0.46
- Prepaid expenses 0.07 3.61
Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets :ountlnd
3
towards asset financing activities
{i} |Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
{ii} |Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{iii) |Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
4 |Break-up of Investments:
Cutrrent investments :
1{Quoted:
{i} Shares : {a) Equity
Asian Paints Limited 1,04,596.39 1,04,596.39
2|Unquoted:
(i) Shares : (a} Equity
Gujarat Organics Limited 0.04 0.04
Resins and Plastics Limited 31.27 31.27
Long Term investments.
1|Quoted:
{i) Shares : {a) Equity
Hitech Corporation Limited 6,026.03 6,026.03
Asian Paints Limited 12,138.84 12,138.84
2|Unguoted:
(I} Shares :(a) Equity
Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited 1.11 111
Rituh Holding and Trading Company Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Pragati Chemicals Limited - 4.40
Resins and Plastics Limited 203.44 19658
{b) Preference
—titech Corporation Limited 737.90 2,213.67
(i) Opffard-AgpRgy at Worli - Tenancy rights 3.30 3.30
it }




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

5 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

As at 31st March, 2021
Sr. Amount net of Provisions
No. Category Secured Unsecured Total
1|Related Parties
{a} Subsidiaries - - -
{b) Companies in the same group - - -
(¢} Other related parties - - -
2|Other than related parties - - -
Total - - -
As at 31st March, 2020
Sr. Amount net of Provisions
No. Category Secured Unsecured Total
1|Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - .
(a) Companies in the same group - - -
2|Other than related parties - - -
Total - - -
6 _ Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term) in shares and securities {both quoted and unguoted):
Market Value Book Value Market Value Book Value
Sr. Cateﬁory / Break up or {Net of / Break up or (Net of
No. fair value or NAV Provision} fair value or NAV Provision)
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
1 [Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries 18,941.62 6,766.03 11,289.46 8,241.81
{b) Companies in the same group 11,60,134.36 1,16,969.97 7,61,839.16 1,16,963.11
{¢) Other related parties - - 310.37 4.40
2 |Other than related parties 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30
Total 11,79,079.28 1,23,739.30 7,73,442.29 1,25,212.62
7 Other information
Sr. Particulars Amount Outst_andlng Amount Outstanding
No. As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
(i) |Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related Parties NIL NIL
{a) Other than related parties
{ii) |Net Non-Performing Assets NIL NIL
{a) Related Parties
{a) Other than related parties
(i) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL NIL




Note35:

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2021

Asset Liabllity Management
As at 31" March, 2021
[INR in lakhs]
Particulars 1dayto7 | 8daysto | 15 daysto 30 [Overl month and| Over 2 months | Over 3 months | Over 6 months | Over 1 year Over 3 and Over 5 years Total
days 14 days days upto 2 months and upto 3 andupto6 | andupto 1year | andupto3 upto 5 years
months months years

Shareholders’ funds

Capital Funds {Equity and Reserves) - - - - - - - - - 91,572.32 91,572.32
Non-current liabilities - - B
Long Term Borrowings - - 9,000.00 - 9,000.00
Long-term Provisions - - - - - - - 13.83 - - 13.83
Current labilities - - - -
Short term Borrowing 10,000.00 3,000.00 12,603.52 25,603.52
Other Current liabilities - - 103.16 69.80 - 15.32 - - - - 188.28
Provisions ' 8.85 - - - 8.85
Total Liabilities - - 103.16 69.80 10,000.00 3,015.32 12,612.37 13.83 9,000.00 91,572.32 1,26,386.80
Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - - - - - - 44,50 44.50
Non current Investments - - - - - - - - - 19,111.60 19,111.60
Long-term Loans and Advances 157.79 - - 15719
Current assets

Current Investments - - - - 10,000.00 3,000.00 12,693.52 - 9,000.00 70,024.18 1,04,627.70
Cash and Bank Balances 69.54 445.00 199.00 - 1,122.24 $00.00 - - - 2,339.78
Short term Loans & Advances 163 - - - - E - - - - 163
Other current assets - - 60.05 0,78 - 39.50 3.48 - - - 103.80
Mismatch - - - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative Mismatch - - - - - - - - - -

Total Assets 71.18 - 509.05 199.78 10,000.00 4,161.74 13,107.00 157.79 9,000.00 £9,180.29 1,26,386.20




Note 35 :

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Notes ta financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Asset Liability Management

Asat 31" March, 2020
{Particulars 1dayto7 | 8 daysto | 15 days to 30 (Over 1 month and| Over2 months | Over 3 months | Over 6 months | Over 1 year COver 3 and Qver 5 years Total

days 14 days days upto 2 months and upte 3 andupto6 |anduptolyear| andupto3 | upto5years
months months years

Shareholders’ funds

Capital Funds (Equity and Reserves) 92,712.74 92,712.74

Non-current liabilities

Long Term Borrowings - - - - - - - 5,000.00 6,500.00 - 11,500.00
Long-term Provisions - - - - - - - 5.38 - - 5.38
Current liabilitles

Short term Borrowing . - R - . . 10,603.94 R . - 10,603.94
Other Current liabilities - - 3,515.74 10.28 12,500.00 11.01 - - - - 16,037.04
Provisions - - - - - - - 12.35 - 12.35
Total Liabilities - - 3,515.74 10.28 12,500.00 11.01 10,603.94 5,017.74 6,500.00 92,712.74 1,30,871.45
Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - - - - - - 55.79 $5.79
Non current Investments - - - - - - - - - 20,584.93 20,584.93
Long-term Loans and Advances - - - - - - - 93.18 - - 93,18
Current assets
Current Investments - - - - 12,500.00 - 10,500.00 - - 81,627.70 1,04,627.70
Cash and Bank Balances 111.65 - 111.00 - 3,928.00 942.58 373.00 - - - 5,466.23
Short term Loans & Advances 6.64 - - - - - - - - - 6.54
Other current assets - - 0.34 - 9.45 26.52 0.67 - - - 36.97
Total Assets _ 118.29 - 111.34 - 16,437.45 969.10 10,873.67 93.18 - 1,02,268.42 1,30,871.45
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Note 37:

Note 38 :

Note 35 :

Note 40 :

(i)

{ii)

(i)

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect:
The Company has no exposure to the real estate sector directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:
The Company is registered with following other financial sector regulators [Financial regulators as described by Ministry of Finance].

Company registered under Ministry of Corporate affairs.
NBFC registered under Reserve Bank of India s

Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:
No Penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during the current and previous year.

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies

As at 31st March 2021
Deposit Instruments Name of the rating agency Rating assigned Valid upto Borrowing limit or conditions
imposed by rating agency
NIL
As at 31st March 2020
D 1t Instruments N fth : Rati d Valld Borrowing limit or conditions
eposit Instrume ame of the rating agency ing assigne alid upte imposed by rating agency
Non-Convertible Brickwork BWR AAA {CE} 23-Mar-21 INR 50,000 lakhs
Debentures [NCD]

Disclosure required as per Reserve Bank of India Notlfication No. DOR(NBFC). £D.003/03.10.119/2016-17 dated August 25, 2016 and as updated from
time to time

Public disclosure on liquidity risk

funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

Year ende 31st March 2021
Sr. No. No. of signlficant Counter Amount {INR in crore} % of Total Borrowings % of Total Liabilities
Parties
1 -] 345.00 100.00% 27.30%
TOTAL 345.00 - 27.30%
Year ende 31st March 2020
Sr. No. No. of significant Counter Amount {INR In crore) % of Total Borrowings % of Total Labilities
Partles
1 5 345.00 100.00% 26.36%
TOTAL 345.00 - 26.36%|
Top 20 large deposits
As at 31" March, 2021 As at 33" March, 2020
Amount {INR in crore} I % of Total Borrowings Amount {INR in crore} | % of Total Borrowings
Rs. Nil Rs. Nil
Top 10 borrowlIngs
sr. No. As at 31" March, 2021 As at 31" March, 2020
Amount {INR in crore) % of Total Borrowings Amount {INR in crore) % of Total Borrowings
1 345,00 100.00%; 345.00 100%
TOTAL 345.00 345.00




w

(iv)

{v)

{vi)

{vil)

{viii)

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Sr. Na. Name of the instrument/ As at 31" March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020
product
Amount {INR in crore) % of Total Borrowings Amaunt {INR in ¢rore)
a Listed Non-Convertible, - - 345.00
Redeemable Debentures
b Borrowings from Financial 345.00 100.00% -
Institutions
345,00 100.00% 345.00
Stock Ratios:
Sr. No. Particulars Year ended 31st March 2021 Year ended 31st March 2021
{Ratlos) (Ratlos)
1 Commercial papers as a % of total public funds Nil Ni{
2 Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total Nil Nil
liabilities
3 Commercial papers as a % of total assets Nil Nil
4 Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less Nil Nil
than one year] as a % of total public funds
5 Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less Nil Nil
than one year) as a % of total liabilities
6 Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less Nil Nil
than one year) as a % of total assets
7 Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public 74.56% 77.02%
funds
8 Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total liabilities 74.11% 69.85%
9 Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total assets 20.41% 20.37%

Institutional set-up of liguidity risk management.

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee. The Asset
Liability Management Committee is supported by Asset Liability Management Support Group to analyse, monitor and report the liquidity risk profile to the

Asset Liability Management Committee,

The Asset Liability Management Committee reviews the liquidity risk management, funding and capital planning, analyzing different scenarios and

preparation of contingency plans. Further, the Risk Management Committee monitors and measures the risk profile of the Company.,

The Company manages liquidity risk in accordance with the Company’s Asset Liability Management Policy. The Company manages liquidity risk by

maintaining sufficient cash surplus and by keeping adequate amount of cammitted credit lines to meet its repayment obligations.

Components of Adjusted Net Worth (ANW) and other related information

{INR in lakhs}
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
i) ANW 5,19,356.72 3,34,928.70
ii} ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Assets 419.21% 272.80%
lii) unrealized appreciation in the book value of quoted investments 10,51,716.14 6,19,127.73
iv) diminu_tion in the aggregate book value of quoted investments NIL NIL
v) Leverage Ratio 0.07 0.11

Investment in other CICs

Farticulars

Current Year

Previous Year

a} Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by
one CIC in another CIC {including name of CICs)

b) Nurber of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital
contribution exceeds 10% of Owned Funds

of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital
is fess than 10% of Owned Funds

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL




(ix)

{x)

{x)

{xi)

{xlf)

[t}

Geetan]all Trading and investments Private Limited
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Off Balance Sheet Exposure

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
i) Off balance sheet exposure NIL NiL
i} Financial Guarantee as a % of total off-balance sheet exposure NIiL NIL
ifi) Non-Financial Guarantee as a% of total off-balance sheet exposure NIL NIL
iv) Off balance sheet exposure to overseas subsidiaries NIL NIL
v Letter of Comfort issued to any subsidiary NIL NIL
Investments

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments
{a) in India 1,23,739.31 1,25,212.62
{b} Outside india NIL NiL
{ii) Provisions for Depreciation
{a) In India NIt NIL
(b} Outside India NIL NIL
{iil} Net Value of investments
(a} In India 1,23,739.31 1,25,212,62
{b) Outside India. "NIL NIL
{2) Movement of provisions .held towards depreciation on investments.
(i) Opening balance NIL NIL|
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year NiL NIL
(iil) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year NIL| NiL|
{iv) Closing balance NIL NIL
Business Ratios

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Return on Equity (RoE) -1.25% 62.14%
Return on Assets (RoA) -0.90% 44.02%
Net profit per employee {in lakhs) -285.11 19,202.98
Provisions and Contingencies
Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencles’ shown under the Profit and Loss Current Year Previous Year
Account
Provisions for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil
Provision towards NPA Nil Nil
Provision made towards Income tax 450.17 2,406.07
Other Provision and Contingencies Nit Nil
Provision for Standard Assets Nil Nil
Concentration of NPAs

Particulars Current Year

INR Lakhs Exposure as a % of total assets

Total Exposure to top five NPA accounts Nil Nil

Particulars Previous Year

INR Lakhs Exposure as a % of total assets

Total Exposure to top five NPA accounts Ni}

Overseas Assets {for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidlaries abroad)

Not applicable, as company does not have any joint venture and subsidiaries abroad during the current as well as previous year.
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{xiv} Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities

Note 41

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and fiabilities as at 31™ March, 2021

Particulars 1 to 7|8tolddays|15 days tolOver 1|Over 2 months|Over 3]over 6 months|Over 1 year{Over 3 years|Over5 years Total
days 30/31 days |month upto|upto3 months [months uptojand upto 1 year(and upto 3| and upto 5
2 month 6 months year year
Advances - - - - - . - -
Investments - - - - 1,04,627.70 - 19,111,60 1,23,735.31
Borrowlngs - - 10,000.00 3,000.00 12,603.52 - 9,000.00 - 34,603.52
Foreign Current assets - - - . . - - .
Foreign Current - - - - - R .
liabilities
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and llabilities as at 31" March, 2020
Particulars 1 to 7|8tolddays |15 days to|Over 1{Over 2 months|Over 3|over 6 months|Over 1 year{Over 3 years|Over 5 years Total
days 30/31 days Imonth upto|upto 3 months months upto|and upto 1 year|and upto 3 and upto 5
2 month & months - year year-
Advances 3.03 - - - - - - 3.03
Investments - - - - 1,04,627.70 - 20,584.93 1,25,212,62
Borrowings 103.54 67.13 15,782.19 - 10,630.62 5,000.00 £,500.00 - 38,083.88
Forelgn Current assets - - - - - - - -
Foreign Current - - - - . - . -
liabilities

Previous year figures are regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

As per our report of even date attached

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner

Membership No.: 106548

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Ashwin §. Dani
Director
DIN: 00009126

Mukesh Desal

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2021

S P

Ina A, Dani
Director
DIN: 00053695

rabhu Chettiyar
Company Secretary
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™) as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and consolidated notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of other auditor on separate financial statements, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Group as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, based on the draft Directors Report
provided to us.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance

LLP IN : AAH - 3437
'EGISTERED OFFICE : ESPLANADE HOUSE, 29, HAZARIMAL SOMANI MARG, FORT, MUMBAI 400 o001
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The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective board of directors of the Companies in the group
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease t0 continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision,
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
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statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statement (before eliminating
intercompany balances) reflects total assets of Rs. 7,484.91 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenues (before
eliminating intercompany balances) of Rs. 12,808.48 lakhs and net cash inflow amounting to Rs. 378.70 lakhs for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been fumnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the
subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work dene and the reports
of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of other
auditor on consolidated financial statements and other financia! information of one subsidiary, we report that:

(a} 'We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account,

{d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2021, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the basis of the reports of
the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, none of the directors Holding Company and its subsidiarics are
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure ‘A’. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements.

(g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, there is no remuneration paid / provided by the Holding Company during the year. So
the provisions of section 197 of the Act, does not apply.
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we further report that:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group and its associate in the consolidated financial statements — Refer Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii.  The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

i There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Group.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104607W / W100166

uret s

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner

Membership No: 106548
Place : Mumbai

Date : November 30, 2021

UDIN No, — 22106542AnRANSTEED
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Annexure ‘A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Para 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the Holding Company on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2021:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of GEETANJALI
TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the group™) which are companies incorporated in India, as listed
in Annexure I, as at March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reperting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements of the Holding
Company and subsidiaries incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control with reference to the financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
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assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial contro! with
reference to the financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the report of other auditor, to the best of out information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and such
internal financial contrels with reference to the financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matters

1. Qur aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary
company, which is company incorporated in India, is based on the correspending report of the auditor of such
company incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
report of the other auditor.

2. Inrespect of one subsidiary company incorporated in India, the reporting under the provisions of section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Companies
and the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017 is not applicable.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104607W / W100166

™)

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner

Membership No: 106548
Place : Mumbai

Date : November 30, 2021

UDIN No ~ 210658 AAARAY G8{0
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Annexure 1

List of entities included in the consolidated financial statements

Subsidiary Companies
1. Hitech Corporation Limited
2. Hitech Specialties Solutions Limited
3. Rituh Holding and trading Company Private Limited
4. Palladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited (with effect from 17 February 21)
5. Ria Enterprises

Sub-subsidiary company
1. Hitech Insurance Broking services Limited (ceased to be subsidiary company with effect from 31 March
21)




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE UMITED
CHN: U65990MH19T9PTCN21049
Consolldated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

[INR in lakhs]
Particulars Note Asat Asat
Na. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
I. | EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES
1 | Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 2 142.16 142.16
(b) Reserves and surplus 3 1,02,450.66 1,02,945.01
1,02,592.82 1,03,087.17
2 | Minority Interest B,338.35 5,174.22
3 | Nen-current liabilitles
{a) Long Term Borrowings 4 15,651.60 18,649.69
{b} Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 5 517.57 840,47
{¢) Other Long-term Liabikities [ - 13,50
{d) Long-term Provisions 7 574.60 283.20
16,743.78 19,786.86
4 | Current ilabifities
(a) Short-term Borrawings 8 30,058.91 18,043.75
(b} Trade Paysbles 9
(i) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 444.57 34121
{ii) Total outstanding dues to ereditors other than {i} above 3,648.05 2,154.18
{¢) Other Current Liabilities 19 4,052.53 19,195.35
{d) Short-term Provisions 11 498.52 336.83
38,702.58 40,071.32
1,66,377.53 1,68,119.57
Ii. | ASSETS
1 ] Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 12 |. 24,767.23 27,239.36
{b) Intangible assets 13 20,10 16.15
{¢) Capital work- in- progress 33242 165.03
{d) Goodwill on consolidation 2,978.61 1,120.11
{e} Non-current Investments 14 13,200.50 12,724.68
{f) Deferred tax assets [net) 15 176.64 32.15
{g) Long-term Loans and Advances 16 2,454.00 245547
{h) Other non-current assets 17 24.80 171.38
{h} Non current assets held for sale 555.69 -
44,520.00 43,924.34
2 | Current assets
{a} Current Investments 18 1,04,629.54 1,04,627.70
{b) inventories 19 5,301.47 4,534,04
(¢} Trade receivables 20 8,189.32 8,301.86
{d) Cash and bank balances 21 3,162.55 5,579.27
{e) Short-term loans and advances 22 300.93 763.07
(f) Other current assets 23 273.73 389.29
1,21,857.53 1,24,195.23
1,66,377.53 1,68,119.57
Significant Accounting Policles 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finandial statements
As per our report attached For and on behalf of Board of
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP Geetanjali Trading and investments Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration number 104607W/W100166

Yo

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner
Membership No.: 106548

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th November, 2022

Ashwin's. Dfni

Director

DIN:00003126

Place: Mumbal
Date: 30th November, 2021

S b0 _as 4 e
e

Ina A. Dani
Director
DIN: 00053695

m'rwlwa-f

Mukesh Desal
Chief Financlal Officer



GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U65990MH1979PTC021049

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

[INR in lakhs]
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars .
feu NoteNo| 5 ot March, 2021 31st March, 2020
1 Revenue from operations 24 57,774.21 69,789.66
2 Profit on Sale of Long Term Equity lnvestments 25 - 58,201.70
3 Cther Income : 26 243.89 387.23
4 Total Revenue 58,018.10 1,28,378.59
S | Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 27 26,708.80 27,309.9%
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 28 8,479.46 12,356.11
Changes in Inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 29 154.98 649.93
Employee Benefits Expenses 30 3,418.53 3,651.32
Finance cost 31 4,996.43 9,698.44
Depreciation and amortization expense 32 2,854.20 2,921.62
Other expenses . 33 10,649.90 10,835.11
Total Expenses 57,262.28 67,422.52
& | Profit/ [Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax {4-5) 755.82 60,956.07
7 | Exceptional items 34 564.31 108.48
8 | Profit/ (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax {6 - 7) 1,320.13 60,847.59
9 | Extraordinary Iltems 35 355.25 213.67
10 { Profit/ (Loss) before tax (8-9} 964.88 60,633.92
11 | TaxExpenses
- Current Tax {1,485.61) 2,617.63
- Deferred Tax 345.96 141.18
- Prior year tax adjustments 100.99 {25.94)
- Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Entitlement (252.61) (57.74)
Total Tax Expense (1,291.27) 2,675.13
12 { Profit/ {Loss) after tax {10- 11) {326.40) 57,958.79
Less : Minority Interest {118.51) (152.54})]
Net Profit / (Loss) attributable to sharehelders {a44.91)] 57,806.25
13 | Earnings per equity share:
Basic & diluted 36 {31.30) 4,066.33
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report attached
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP For and on behalf of Board of
Chartered Accountants Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Firm Regn. No. 104607W/W100166 . ,ﬂ?/"“gpﬂl
M e aﬂc;z,,.‘, Eot%
Roshni R. Marfatia &/ _ W lna’;.’t;a:i’//

Partner Director Director
) DIN:00009126 DIN:00053695
- rl
rabhu Chettiyar Mukesh Desai
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th November, 2021 Date: 30th November, 2021




GEETAMJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U65950MH1979PTC021049
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

{INR in lakhs)
For the year ended 31st March, 2021 For the year ended 315t March, 2020
A. |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -
Net Profit / (loss) before tax and extraordinary item 964.88 60,633.92
| Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,929.87 2,921.62
{Profit) / Loss an sale of long term equity investments 38.35 (58,201.70)
Finance Cost 4,968.20 9,698.44
Provision for doubtful debts g.42 (68.37)
Provision for doubtful advances 133.83 (48.89)
Loss / {profit) on sale of long term investments - -
Loss / {profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (620.71) 211
Profit on sale of mutual funds - {367.60)
Diminution in value of Investments in Mutual Funds - -
Unrealised foreign exchange {net} 0.05 {0.68}
Interest income on income tax - {0.43}
Excess provision against standard assets written back - [9.29}
Rental income from Investment Property ° (23.25) (27.00)
Dividend income 3178.87 -
Bad Debts written off 51.12 -
Interest {Income) / Paid 17.52 -
Income received from customers 82.24 -
Payments of employee benefits (58.36) -
Payments of other operating expenses {30.47) -
Deferred tax 44.52 -
Share of Loss from Partnership firm &07.33 134.92
Operating Profit before working capital changes 9,492 .41 14,667.05
Adjustments for changes in :
Inventories {372.67) §992.19
Trade and Other receivables 551.21 (318.08)
Current and non-current loans and advances 481.86 387.53
Other current and non-current assets {56.07) (31.53)
Trade and Other Payables 725,58 [(571.98)
lother fiabilities and provisions {721.71}) (1,708.36)
Cash Generated from operotions 10,100.62 13,416.82
Income Tax Paid [Net] . {1,303.02} {2,691.55)
lAmartisation in relation to revaluation {5.45) -
Net Cash generated from operating activities 8,792.15 10,725.27
B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets {1,787.54) {2,619.65)
Proceeds from sale of Property Plant and Equipment 782.3% 26.47
Purchase of long term investments {2.45) {44.33)
Proceeds from sale of long term investments 90.00 63,6593.79
Proceeds from redemption of Preference shares 1,490.48 -
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund (net} - 1,683.18
Proceeds from maturity of term deposits with bank 125.82 -
Intercorporate deposits received back - 2,318.711
Fixed deposits with banks (net} 591.66 {54.58)
Fixed deposits with bank held under lien or in escrow account {net) {1,072.23) {35.58}
Rent received 23.25 27.00
Interest received 37.58 1231
Dividend received 14.19 -
Net Cash fused in} / genercted from investing activities 293.15 65,013.31
C. JCASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
Increase / {Decrease) in long term borrowings 12,584.68 [25,670.40)
Increase / {Decrease) in short term borrowings {1,983.37) 1,185.57
Repayment of debentures {13,990.48} {30,000.00)
§Paid for Loans and Advances 48,72 -
Dividend and dividend tax paid {325.99) {120.89)
Finance Cost Paid {8,412.87) {16,974.20)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities {12,078.31) {71,569.92}]
Net {Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents {2,993.01) 4,168.66
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,228.10 50.44
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,235.09 4,228.10




Notes:

1 Gash and Cash equivalents comprises of :
Balances with bank
- in current account B855.68 182.79
- in cash credit account (278.19) -
- in deposit account with maturity less than or equal 1o 3 months 653.10 4,039.00
Cashin hand . 4.49 6.31
1,235.09 4,228.10

2 The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in AS 3 - 'Cash Flow Statements’.
Since the Parent Company is an investment company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of 'Cash flow from investing activities' and interest earned (net) - INR]

159.16 lakhs [Previous Year - INR 197.12 lakhs) and dividend earned of INR 2,231.87 lakhs {Previous Year - INR 8,659.42 |akhs) have been considered as part of 'Cash flow from operating|
activities',

4 Direct taxes paid is treated as arising from operating activities and is not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

S Figures in brackets are outflows/ deductions. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of Board of
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP Geetanjalt Trading and Investments Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration number 104507W/W100166

Wosart?) ‘@W' USSR

h -

Roshni R. Marfatia Ashwin 5. Dani Ina A. Dani
Director Director
DIN:00009126 DIN: 00053695
d Mukesh Desai
ompany Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Placa: Mumbai
Date: 30th November, 2021




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2021

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Group has prepared these financial
statements under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting to comply in all
material respects with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,
to the extent applicable.

The classification of assets and liabilities of the Group into current or non-current is based on
the Group's normal operating cycle and other criterion specified in the Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013. The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Principles of Consolidation:

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and it’s subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™). The Consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 — Consolidated Financial
Statements in subsidiaries. ‘

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the financial statements of the
Parent Company and three of its subsidiaries drawn up to the same reporting date i.e. 31%
March, 2021.

The consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries is done on
line by line basis adding together the book values of the like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses after eliminating all significant intra-group balances, intra-group
transactions and unrealised profit or loss. The result of the operations of the subsidiaries is
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which the parent subsidiary
relationship came into existence. The difference between the cost of investment in the
subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. Goodwill arising on
consolidation is tested for impairment annually. Minority’s interest in net profit or loss of
consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income in order to
arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholders of the Company. Their share in net
assets is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet separately. As far as
possible, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2021

Particulars of subsidiaries and associate companies-

Name Country  of | Proportionate | Proportionate
Incorporation | share in | share in
ownership ownership

Interest as on | Interest as on
31 March, | 31t March,

2021 2020
Subsidiary Companies
Hitech Corporation Limited India 69.11% 69.11%
Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited India 100% 100%
Rituh Holding and Trading Company India 100% 100%
Private Limited
Paladin Paints & Chemicals Private India 55.86% -
Limited (with effect from 17%
February 2021)
Ria Enterprise India 100% -
Hitech Insurance Broking Services India - 100%
Limited (Subsidiary of wholly owned
company — Hitech Specialities

Solutions Limited) (ceased to be
subsidiary company with effect from
315 March 2021)

Associate Company

Pragati Chemicals Limited * India - -

*Consequent to the Scheme of Amalgamation of Pragati Chemicals Ltd. with Resins and
Plastics Limited under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 as approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal vide its Order dated 25 June, 2020, the Company has
received 136,667 equity shares of Resins and Plastics Ltd in lieu of its holding of 82,000
equity shares in Pragati Chemicals Ltd. The said scheme is effective from the Appointed date
of 1 April, 2019. The Company held 22.78% of the equity capital of Pragati Chemicals
Limited up to the date of its amalgamation and was consolidated in the financial statements of
the Company as an Associate up to the previous year. Post amalgamation, the Company’s
holding in the transferee company Resins and Plastics Limited is reduced to 8.06% and thus
is not required to be consolidated.

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited holds 60% partnership share in Ria
Enterprise and Ria enterprise further holds 93.08% in Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private
Limited, leading to 55.85% indirect holding in Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited.

Investments in associate was accounted using the “Equity Method” in accordance with
Accounting Standard 23 (AS — 23) “Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements” under which the investment is initially recorded at cost, identifying any
goodwill or capital reserve arising at the time of acquisition. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of the net assets
of the associate.




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Consol

c)

d)

g)

“# . Plant & Machinery* 9.67 years

idated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31°* March, 2021

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as of the date of
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting
period. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from the estimates.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

The property, plant and equipment are stated at cost (net of cenvat credit, wherever
applicable) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost includes
cost of acquisition including taxes, duties and other identifiable direct expenses incurred to
bring the assets to their present location and condition. Expenses directly attributable to new
manufacturing facility during its construction period are capitalised. Knowhow related to
plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalised under relevant
asset heads. Interest on borrowed funds attributable up to the period assets are put to use is
included in the cost of qualifying assets. Freehold land (Plot at Gujarat) is measured at cost
and is not depreciated. Profit or loss on disposal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of intangible assets acquired in amalgamation
in the nature of purchase is reflected at their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Profit
or loss on disposal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Capital work-in-progress & Capital Advances

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital
work-in-progress. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as “Long term loans and advances”.

Depreciation and amortization:

Depreciation is provided on all assets under written down value method over the useful life of
assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

For one of the subsidiary, depreciation is provided on straight line method, except Building,
which is depreciation on written down value method. The estimated useful life over which
these assets are depreciated are as follows:-

Assets Useful life
Buildings 40 years
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Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2021

h)

Moulds 4 years
Computer 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

* useful life of plant and machinery is considered based on triple shift working.

Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease.
Purchase cost, user license fees and consultancy fees for major software and patent are
amortised over a period of three years.
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